
 

 

 

Consent Agenda 



42-23   45-42 

March 7, 2023 

MET IN REGULAR SESSION 

The Board of Supervisors met in regular session at 10:00 A.M.  All members present.  Chairman Shea 

presiding.        

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

After discussion was held by the Board, a Motion was made by Belt,  and second by Miller, to approve: 

 

A. February 28, 2023, Minutes as read. 

B. Renewal of Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial), granting privileges of Class C 

Liquor License (LC) Commercial/Outdoor service for NW Pottawattamie County Golf 

Association, Inc. d/b/a Quail Run Country Club, Neola. 

C. New Ownership of Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) , granting privileges of Class 

C Liquor License (LC)/Outdoor Service for Prairie Crossing Vineyard and Winer, LLC  d/b/a 

Prairie Crossing Winery, Treynor. 

D. Renewal of Class C Liquor License, granting privileges of Class C Liquor License 

(LC)/Outdoor Service/Sunday Sales for Grand Mac LLC d/b/a Mile A Way Hall & Tavern, 

Council Bluffs. 

E. Renewal of Class C Liquor License, granting privileges of Class C Liquor License (LC)/ 

Outdoor Service  for BT Links LLC d/b/a Bent Tree Golf Club, Council Bluffs. 

F. Renewal of  Class B Native Wine Liquor License, granting privileges of Class B Native Wine 

Liquor License/Sunday Sales for Olive Branch Inc d/b/a Olive Branch, Council Bluffs.  

G. February 2023 Vendor Publication Report. 

 

UNANIMOUS VOTE.  Motion Carried. 

 
2. SCHEDULED SESSIONS  

 

Motion by Miller, second by Belt, to open public hearing on Pottawattamie County’s Maximum Property 

Tax Levy for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024. 

Roll Call Vote:  AYES:  Shea, Belt, Wichman, Miller, Jorgensen  Motion Carried. 

 
Motion by Wichman, second by Belt, to close public hearing. 

Roll Call Vote:  AYES: Shea, Belt, Wichman, Miller, Jorgensen.  Motion Carried. 

 
Motion by Wichman, second by Miller, to approve and authorize Board to sign Resolution No. 18-2023, 

a Resolution to Approve Pottawattamie County’s Maximum Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year Ending 

June 30, 2024.  Said Resolution is set out as follows: 

RESOLUTION NO.  18-2023  

 
A Resolution Approving Pottawattamie County’s Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, 2024. 

 
WHEREAS,  the Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors have considered the 

proposed fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, County maximum property 

tax dollars for the affected levy total; and 

 

WHEREAS, a notice concerning the proposed County maximum property tax dollars 

was published as required and posted on the Pottawattamie County web 

site and social media accounts, where applicable; and 

 

WHEREAS,  a public hearing concerning the proposed Pottawattamie County 

maximum property tax dollars was held on March 7, 2023. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Pottawattamie County Board of 

Supervisors that the maximum property tax dollars for the affected tax levies for fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024, shall not exceed the following total: 

 

Total maximum levy for affected property tax levies for General Services 

$41,616,001; and for Rural Services $6,880,242. 



43-23   45-43 

The maximum property tax dollars requested in the total maximum levy for the affected 

property tax levies for fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, does represent greater than 102% 

of the maximum property tax dollars requested for current fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 

         Dated this 7th day of March, 2023. 

        RO L L    C A L L   V O T E  

 

                  

AYE 

       

NAY 

 

ABSTAIN 

 

ABSENT 

 

______________________________       

Brian Shea, Chairman 

 

______________________________       

Scott Belt 

 

______________________________       

Tim Wichman 

 

 

______________________________       

Susan Miller 

 

____________________________       

Jeff Jorgensen 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________________________ 

      Melvyn Houser, County Auditor 

Roll Call Vote:  AYES:  Shea, Belt, Wichman ,Miller, Jorgensen.  Motion Carried. 

 

Motion by Wichman, second by Belt, to approve the Public Health Administrator to sign the 5-year 

agreement with Patagonia Health for electronic medical records. 

UNANIMOUS VOTE.  Motion Carried.  

 

Motion by Wichman, second by Belt, to approve final payment and authorize Chairman to sign final 

voucher to Jensen Construction Company for Project BRS-SWAP-CO78(195)—FF-78. 

UNANIMOUS VOTE.  Motion Carried. 

 

3.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Jana Lemrick/Director, Human Resources appeared before the Board to discuss the appointment of a 

representative to the Southern Iowa Regional Housing Authority (SIRHA) Board of Commissioners. 

Discussion only.  No action taken. 

 

4.   COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

 

Board discussed Committee meetings from the past week. 

Discussion only.  No action taken. 

 
5.  RECEIVED/FILED 

 

A.  Report(s): 

1) Sheriff’s Report of  Fees Disbursed and Collected for January 2023. 

2) Recorder Fee Book for February 2023. 

B. Salary Action(s): 

1) Communications – Payroll status change for Elizabeth Sanders. 

 

6.   PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Donna Dykstra appeared before the Board to discuss how bids are received. 

 

7.   CLOSED SESSIONS 

 

Motion by Wichman, second by Miller, to go into Closed Session pursuant to Iowa Code 20.17.(3) for 

discussion and/or decision on labor negotiations/collective bargaining matters. 

Roll Call Vote:  AYES:  Shea, Belt, Wichman, Miller, Jorgensen.  Motion Carried. 

 



44-23   45-44 

 

Motion by Wichman, second by Jorgensen, to go out of Closed Session. 

Roll Call Vote:  AYES:  Shea, Belt, Wichman, Miller, Jorgensen.  Motion Carried. 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Wichman, second by Jorgensen, to adjourn meeting. 

 

UNANIMOUS VOTE.  Motion Carried. 

 

THE BOARD ADJOURNED SUBJECT TO CALL AT 11:32 A. M 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 
     Brian Shea, Chairman 
      

ATTEST: _________________________________________ 

  Melvyn Houser, County Auditor 

 

APPROVED:   March 14, 2023 

PUBLISH:   X 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Scheduled 

Sessions 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA Tuesday, MARCH 14, 2022  

How to Participate in this meeting: 

• In Person 
• Telephone Conference Call: (712) 328-5848 
• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCeP9ZQIBgMpuSyOprlyMl6g 

 
 

 

 
  
A. Approval of minutes, January 10, 2023, for the Coulthard Levee District and the C & R Levee 

District meeting.   
 

B. Approval of payment for crop damages to Don Brothers & Otto Family Farms, LLC, for the 
Coulthard Levee District. 

 
C. Approval of report on off-site fill material for the C & R Levee District. 

 
 

Board of Trustees of the C & R Levee and  
the Coulthard Levee Drainage Districts 
Located in Pottawattamie and Harrison  
County Iowa 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM 
POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, 2nd Floor 

227 SOUTH 6TH STREET 
COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA  51501 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCeP9ZQIBgMpuSyOprlyMl6g


 

Linda Swolley/Tax & Deed 
Specialist, Auditor’s Office  

Board Meeting as Trustees of Coulthard and  

C & R Levee District 
 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision to approve the minutes from 
January 10, 2023, for the Coulthard Levee District and 

the C & R Levee District meeting. 

 

 



 
  

 
 
 
January 10, 2023, at 10:00 A.M. 
 
Present: Scott Belt, Tim Wichman, Brian Shea, Susan Miller and Jeff Jorgensen, Pottawattamie County 
trustees. 
 
Trustees of the Coulthard Levee Drainage District and Trustees of the C & R Levee District: 
 
The drainage clerk presented the board minutes dated December 20, 2022, motion by Belt, second by 
Wichman.   
UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried. 
 
Trustees of the C & R Levee District: 
Approving payment of the invoice in amount of $58,198.48 to Bolton & Menk, Inc, motion by Wichman, 
second by Miller.  
UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried. 
 
 
Linda Swolley, Clerk 
Pottawattamie County Auditor’s Office  
227 South 6th Street 
Council Bluffs IA  51501 
712-328-5700 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MELVYN J HOUSER 
POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY AUDITOR 
AND ELECTION COMMISSIONER  
227 S 6TH ST, PO BOX 649   
COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA 51502-0649    

Linda Swolley-Drainage Clerk 
Phone (712) 328-5700 
FAX   (712) 328-4740  



 

Linda Swolley/Tax & Deed 
Specialist, Auditor’s Office  

Board Meeting as Trustees of Coulthard and  

C & R Levee  
 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision to approve invoice from 
Bolton and Menk Inc. for the crop damage due to the 

construction to landowners. 

 

 































 

Linda Swolley/Tax & Deed 
Specialist, Auditor’s Office  

Board Meeting as Trustees of Coulthard and  

C & R Levee District 
 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision to approve report on off-site 
fill material for the C & R Levee. 

 

 





















 

 

John Thomas/Director, Hungry Canyons Alliance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Presentation on Hungry Canyons Alliance 
programs. 



HUNGRY CANYONS ALLIANCE – Dec 2022 Update 
 

The Problem 
 The Hungry Canyons Alliance (HCA) was formed 
locally to research and implement solutions to the 
problem of stream channel erosion and degradation in a 
19 county area of the deep loess soils region of western 
Iowa.  Channelization of streams and land use changes 
during the first half of the 1900’s caused stream channels 
to erode, causing an estimated $1.1 billion in damages to 
public and private infrastructure (bridges, culverts, 
utility lines, etc.), loss of farmland, and increased 
sediment loads.  A 2013 survey of county infrastructure 
in western Iowa revealed that a total of 415 bridges, 
culverts, and flumes were still endangered due to stream 
channel degradation.    Golden Hills RC&D in Oakland, 
Iowa helped to form and currently provides office space and administrative assistance to the HCA. 

The Solution 
A proven, affordable solution to this problem is to build grade 

control structures in streams.  Grade control structures (GCS) at 
regular intervals help streams stabilize by changing their 
longitudinal profile from an erosive steep incline to a stable stair-
step pattern.  Streambed stabilization is the key to preventing further 
erosion and protecting infrastructure.  GCS design is largely 
dependent on drainage area.  Small drainage areas can often be 
controlled with reinforced concrete box (RCB) or corrugated metal 
pipe (CMP) culverts with drop inlets and/or flume outlets.  Large 
drainage areas are often controlled with weirs constructed with steel 
sheet pile driven into the streambed, with a riprap and concrete grout 
slope immediately downstream, a loose riprap stilling basin 
downstream of the weir slope, and loose riprap covered banks.  Both 
RCB/CMP and weir designs allow the stream elevation to drop in a 
controlled setting, restore lost stream grade, prevent further 
degradation, and reduce streambed slope upstream.  This creates a 
calm backwater condition where silt can settle out, decreasing 
sediment loads and turbidity and increasing water quality.  Sediment 
re-deposited upstream then helps support formerly exposed bridge 
pilings and stabilize eroded streambanks. 

The Savings 

 The HCA provides state and federal money available to the 
19 counties through a cost share program for grade control 
structures (GCS).  County governments provide a minimum of 
20% match for each GCS.  Since 1992, the program has provided 
$27 million in state and federal appropriations and the technical 
assistance needed to complete 421 GCS in 19 counties in western 
Iowa.  Another 11 GCS are in progress.  These GCS will protect 
an estimated $100.8 million in property value.  It is estimated that 
827.5 acres of land, equivalent to 24.6 million tons of sediment, 
will be protected from erosion by construction of the 432 GCS. 
HCA grade control structures,  with an average cost of  $66,182, 

Straightened stream 

Old meander 

Bridge endangered by exhumation of pilings. 

Old streambed elevation 

Straightened versus meandering stream.  
(Walnut Creek, Pottawattamie County). 

active HCA counties inactive HCA counties 

probable northeastern extent of 
widespread channel degradation
(based on geomorphology, soils)

probable eastern extent of 
widespread channel degradation 
(based on channelization, loess depth)



protect approximately $233,346 in property per GCS.  For every $1 
invested in HCA grade control structures, on average more than 
$4.26 of property value and 0.91 tons of sediment are protected 
from streambed degradation.  During FY 2022, the HCA 
completed construction on eight GCS, and obligated cost share to six 
new projects. 
 A second HCA program provides funding to landowners where 
grade control is necessary to stabilize active gully erosion.  This 
program is funded with the interest earned from state appropriations.  
This program has built 131 structures, and approved another one, 
with cost share totaling $901,426. 
 The HCA has quarterly meetings at which issues concerning 
stream erosion and streambed stabilization are discussed.  Tours 
show firsthand which aspects of past GCS designs have worked and 
which haven’t while also highlighting new techniques which can be 
used to enhance future GCS performance.  Regular attendees include 
county engineers and supervisors, NRCS & DNR employees, SWCD 
commissioners, consultants, contractors, and landowners. 
 Over 1,500 GCS of all types have been constructed in 19 western 
Iowa  counties  by  county  governments,  the  HCA,  NRCS,  NRCS- 
EWP,  SWCD,  Iowa  DOT,  cities,  utility  (water,  gas,  telephone,  
electric, etc.) companies, railroad companies, Army Corps of Engineers, Iowa DNR, and landowners.  This is 
the greatest concentration of GCS anywhere in the world due to the loess soils, highly altered unstable stream 
system, high drainage density, and high road density.  With so many GCS located in one area, western Iowa has 
been referred to as a “laboratory” for GCS design.  And because western Iowa is still experiencing streambed 
degradation, the HCA is one of the unheralded leaders in innovative GCS research, design, and construction. 

Matching Federal Funding for Flood Recovery 
 Heavy precipitation in May 2007 and June 2008, and again in March and June of 2019, resulted in 
widespread stream channel damage and destroyed county road infrastructure.  However, in the investigations 
that followed, FEMA, NRCS, and county road departments all reported that GCS directly reduced infrastructure 
and channel damage costs and the number of FEMA program claims, and infrastructure protected by GCS 
suffered no damage.  Although some GCS suffered minor damage, these damages were minimal compared to 
the potential total loss of infrastructure that could have resulted without the GCS. 

Federal NRCS-EWP funding became available after the disaster declarations; so in order to complete as 
many projects as possible and reduce the counties’ burden to 15% match, the HCA provided 10% match (using 
state cost share) for all EWP projects which provided grade control or were directly associated with existing 
GCS projects.  Between September 2008 and January 2011, 72 GCS projects were completed at a cost of 
$12.84 million.  The HCA provided $1.28 million in cost share, the EWP program $9.50 million, and the 
sponsor counties $2.05 million.  In 2020-2021, 69 GCS projects were completed at a cost of $10.66 million.  
The HCA provided $1.07 million in cost share, the EWP program $8.05 million, and the sponsor counties 
$1.55 million. 

HCA Research 
 Completed HCA research projects include design of GCS to provide fish passage, use of scrap tires in GCS, 
aerial stream video and classification of western Iowa streams, factors controlling knickpoint migration, and the 
use of directional drilling in small watershed GCS projects.  Ongoing research projects include experimenting 
with new bank stabilization techniques and measuring nutrient loads from eroding streambanks to quantify the 
impact of channel stabilization projects.  Partners in these projects include: NRCS, Iowa DOT Highway 
Research Board, IIHR–Hydroscience and Engineering at the University of Iowa, Natural Resource Ecology and 
Management Department at Iowa State University, Civil Engineering Department at Iowa State University, Iowa 
DNR, US Geological Survey, and US Fish and Wildlife Service. 

Top: 4 foot high sheet pile weir with a 1:20 grouted 
riprap slope in Crawford County.  Bottom: RCB 

flume with 25 feet of fall in Fremont County. 

For further information, please contact:  John Thomas, Project Director, Hungry Canyons Alliance, Golden Hills RC&D Office, 712 S. Hwy. 6 & 59,  
P.O. Box 189, Oakland, IA 51560-0189     Ph: 712-482-3029     Fax: 712-482-5590     Cell: 402-250-3293     Email:  john.t.thomas@goldenhillsrcd.org 



 

Bridge before  Drop inlet after

New weir afterOld weir before

CMP culvert inlet before Drop inlet after

Greenwood before  RCB flume after



 

 

Matt Wyant/Director, Planning and Development 
 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision to move forward 
on development of an agreement for 

funding of road in Stoneybrook housing 
addition. 



 

 

Jason Slack/Director, Buildings and Grounds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision on proposal for 
storage area fencing. 



RISK

I.T.

PLANNING
&

PUBLIC HEALTH

ATTORNEY

ASSESSOR

911
COMMUNICATIONSCONSERVATION

COURTHOUSE
STORAGE

AUDITOR
275

520

230

155

162

121
155

602

955

405

90

40’

13.5 X 11.5

13.5 X 11.5

20 X 6

20 X 8

20 X 26
13.5 X 17

30 X 13.5

21.5 X 28

28.5 X 37

Pottawattamie County Courthouse
Basement Storage Layout 2023

N

Sq.Ft. Requested:

Auditor: 900
Assessor: 150
Attorney: 150
Conservation: 275
Risk: -100
911 Comm: 150
Planning & Health: 
100
State Courts: 1590

All Fencing 8’ High

6’ X 15’

20 X 13.5

450’ of 9 gauge Chain Link Fence
4” X 8’ SCH 40 Posts. 10’ max span
10 Gates; joint welded; Combination Locks w/deadbolt
Bottom Rail
Flange mount to concrete floor with wedge anchors.
Hours of Operation: 06:00-4:30 M-F



RECIPIENT:

Jason Slack
South 6th Street
Council Bluffs, Iowa 51501

SERVICE ADDRESS:

South 6th Street
Council Bluffs, Iowa 51501

Quote #5304

Sent on Feb 10, 2023

Salesperson: Rob DeMey

Total $37,808.91

PRODUCT / SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY. UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL

Layout of Project 1 $0.00 $0.00*

Galvanized Chain Link -
Material Sales

Galvanized Chain Link
8' x 4" SCH40 Plated Posts
8' Tall 9 Gauge 2-1/4" Diamond Fence Fabrice
1-5/8" Top Middle and Bottom Rail

450 $29.35 $13,207.50

Labor Sales - Chain Link
Installation

Chain Link Installation 450 $28.40 $12,780.00*

Material Sales - Chain Link
Gate

Chain Link Gate 8' tall x 4' wide with dual side
combination lock.

10 $885.00 $8,850.00*

Labor Sales - Gate
Installation

Installation of gate (s) 10 $135.00 $1,350.00*

Project Fee PROJECT FEE WAIVED
Includes:
Material / Installation Markouts
Mobilization (Loading materials, travel time, fuel).
Administration expenses for filing residential
permit, ordering materials, HOA approval, verify
zoning, 811 Dig Tickets, filing warranty with
manufacturer, etc.
PROJECT FEE WAIVED

1 $895.00 $895.00*

A deposit of $18,904.46 will be required to begin.

1 of 2 pages

Acreage Fences
8551 Whitmore Circle  |  Omaha, Nebraska 68122
402-571-0511  |  CustomerService@AcreageFences.com  |  www.acreagefences.com



* Non-taxable

QUOTE: This quote is valid for 30 days.

TOTAL FOOTAGE SUBJECT TO CHANGE BASED ON FINAL LAYOUT.
Client must provide the location of where the fence is to be installed.  Client is
responsible for the placement of fence, therefore, releasing Acreage Fences of
any liability of the final layout.  

If Client requests a survey, one will be ordered at Client's expense.   Acreage
Fences is NOT responsible for any underground lines, etc. (i.e. sprinkler, sewer,
private electric, gas, telephone, invisible fence) not located by the respective State
Buried Location Service. If Client requests the fence to be placed within 18" of a
marked utility line, then Acreage Fences is NOT responsible for damage to the
utility line. Client is responsible for providing HOA contact information.  Acreage
Fences staff will obtain HOA approval. 

If Client requests installation on an existing concrete or stone structure, Acreage
Fences is NOT responsible for any loss or damage to structure, including but not
limited to driveways, sidewalks, patios, retaining walls, etc., which may be
sustained while installers are on the premises, during the installation of the project,
or after the project is completed.  If there are any changes that will affect the
quote/project (landscaping, grading, pool, etc.), Client must inform Acreage
Fences so a change order or new quote can be issued and approved. 

SPRINKLER INSURANCE: Optional sprinkler damage insurance.  If sprinkler
insurance is not elected, client will be responsible for any repair costs.  

PAYMENT: A deposit of 50% of project is due upon approval.  Final Invoice will be
sent after completion.  Final payment is due within 7 days. A service charge of 4%
of the balance due will be charged after 15 days. A service charge of an additional
3% of the balance due will be charged after 30 days.  

CANCELLATION:  Client may cancel project at any time.  A 20% cancellation fee
will be charged along with any expenses incurred by Acreage Fences (building
permit fees, restocking fees, cost of custom ordered materials, survey, markouts
and administration fees). 

CRAFTMANSHIP WARRANTY: Acreage Fences offers a 3-year Craftsmanship
warranty on all residential projects; 1-year Craftsmanship warranty on commercial
and farm projects.  All warranties will be filed by Acreage Fence after final
payment.  A copy will be mailed to Client for their records.

Signature: _____________________      Date: _____________

Subtotal $37,082.50

Omaha 5.5 (5.5%) $726.41

Total $37,808.91

2 of 2 pages

Acreage Fences
8551 Whitmore Circle  |  Omaha, Nebraska 68122
402-571-0511  |  CustomerService@AcreageFences.com  |  www.acreagefences.com



Pottawattamie County Courthouse Basement Storage Fencing

February 2023

American Fence Acreage Fencing Cardinal Fencing

$37,808.91$54,283.51 $45,397.00



 

 

Jason Slack/Director, Buildings and Grounds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision on shelving for 
storage areas. 





 

 

Jason Slack/Director, Buildings and Grounds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision on quote for 
window coverings for Courthouse addition. 





Other Business 



 

 

David Bayer/Chief Information Officer, Information 
Technology  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision to approve 
updated IT Support Definition Policy. 



1 
 

Title:   Information Technology Support Definition Policy 
Effective Date:  July 11, 2013 
Revision Date:  March 7, 2023 
Authorized by:  County Board of Supervisors 
 
Introduction 
The Pottawattamie County Information Technology (PCIT) Department supports the technology that 
empowers County employees and departments.  Due to the many uses of technology, it is important to 
clearly define the support PCIT provides. 
 
Goal 
To define the role of Pottawattamie County Information Technology for both the PCIT staff and the 
customers they serve. 
 
Definitions 

• PCIT – The Pottawattamie County IT Department 
• Customer – A public agency or department entitled to PCIT support by virtue of their position in 

the structure of the County government, such as defined in Iowa Code, or otherwise authorized 
to receive support as directed by the Board of Supervisors. 

• Peripherals – Any electronic equipment connected to a computer (e.g., monitor, UPS, scanner, 
printer, keyboard, mouse, external hard drive, etc.). 

• Department-specific software – This is software designed for specific use and not common to 
other County departments or agencies. 

o An example of department-specific software would be the Recorder’s Office software 
used to index and scan documents. 

o An example of non-department-specific software would be Microsoft Office or Adobe 
Reader. 

 
Authorized Customers 

• Animal Control 
• Board of Supervisors 
• Buildings & Grounds 
• City of Avoca Police Department * 
• City of Carter Lake Police Department * 
• City of Council Bluffs * 
• Community Services 
• Conservation 
• County Assessor * 
• County Attorney 
• County Auditor 
• County Recorder 
• County Treasurer 
• Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) * 
• Emergency Management Agency (EMA) * 

• Secondary Roads 
• GIS 
• PCIT 
• Human Resources (including Safety/Risk 

Management & Public Relations) 
• Iowa Department of Human Services (DHS) * 
• Medical Examiner 
• Planning & Development 
• Public Health 
• Sheriff’s Office (including 911 & Jail) 
• State Courts * 
• Southwest Iowa Juvenile Detention Center * 
• Southwest Iowa MHDS Region * 
• Veteran Affairs 
• Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) *

 
* Receives a subset of PCIT services outlined in individual signed agreements 

 



2 
 

Equipment and Systems PCIT Supports 
• Hardware 

o All customer-operated personal computers including desktops, laptops, tablets, MDT’s, 
and their peripherals (see Computer Replacement Policy for more details) 

o All computing and networking equipment in County data centers and wiring closets (i.e., 
servers, storage devices, switches, routers, etc.) 

o Server Room and Rack-mounted uninterruptible power supply (UPS) devices 
o PCIT will help procure computer peripherals for purchase.   Costs of peripherals will be 

incurred by the customer. 
• Software 

o PCIT will help procure new software.  Costs of procurement will be incurred by the 
customer unless it is part of an enterprise system used by multiple departments.  In this 
case, the cost will become a PCIT expense.  Please communicate your plans to PCIT prior 
to budget season. 

o PCIT will perform client software installations 
o Software Configuration 

 PCIT will coordinate with the vendor for vendor-developed software 
 PCIT will configure software that PCIT has developed  

o In most cases, customers are responsible to get help directly from their vendor for 
software support.  PCIT staff can be contacted to act as a liaison when the requests to 
the vendor become prohibitively technical for the customer or when PCIT staff can work 
with the vendor more efficiently to solve the issue. 

• Reporting 
o PCIT will direct you to work with your vendor for vendor-developed software. 
o PCIT will either develop the report(s) or outsource the work, for software that PCIT 

supports. 
• Network - all network related tasks will be handled only by PCIT including, but not limited to: 

o Access to the Internet 
 PCIT will make every effort to ensure reliable Internet access and access to 

websites are maintained. 
 PCIT is only able to ensure correct operation of web servers that PCIT operates.  

For that reason, some website problems, after proper troubleshooting of our 
network, may be outside of PCIT’s control.  In such cases, the customer may 
need to contact the third-party who runs the website for resolution. 

o Access to the local area network (LAN) 
o Security of the network (LAN) 

• All Desk Telephones and Telephone Systems 
• E-mail 

o PCIT will make every effort to ensure reliable delivery of e-mail to recipients on the Internet. 
o PCIT can only verify transmission of e-mail traffic on servers PCIT operates.  In most cases, 

PCIT can confirm whether a message appears to have been accepted by a third-party. 
 
Unsupported Equipment and Systems 

• Knowledge of department-specific software and its workflow 
o It is the responsibility of customers to train their staff and ensure they know how to 

properly use department-specific software. 
o PCIT will field questions regarding department-specific software but may refer the 

customer to the vendor’s customer service if necessary. 



3 
 

• Software/Hardware that is unsupported by the vendor will not be supported by PCIT.  In most 
cases, PCIT will recommend that the software/hardware be replaced when the vendor no longer 
offers support of the system.  It is the responsibility of the customer to pursue the 
software/hardware replacement.  PCIT can help with the procurement. 

• Power/Electricity 
o Individual computer UPS devices (battery backup) are to be purchased and maintained 

by the individual department.  IT can provide recommendations. 
• Network Cabling 

o PCIT will contact Buildings & Grounds to add new network cables (network drops) if the 
request comes to PCIT. 

o Buildings & Grounds or Jail Maintenance will handle the request to add new network 
cables if the request comes to PCIT. 

o In either case, PCIT and maintenance personnel will communicate and coordinate their 
efforts to best serve their customers. 

o Costs associated with network and telephone cabling will be charged to the department 
unless part of an PCIT project. 

• Security Camera Systems 
o PCIT does not install security camera systems. 

 Buildings & Grounds should be contacted for help in procuring and installing 
these systems. 

 Court Security or Jail Administration (depending on the camera locations) 
should be contacted if the expectation is that they are monitoring the new 
cameras and responding to incidents. 

o PCIT will help connect the cameras and other equipment to the network. 
• Cell Phones & Accessories – PCIT will help connect the cell phone to County systems, but the cell 

phone hardware and its accessories and the cell phone plan are not a PCIT responsibility. 
• Personal Equipment or Software – PCIT will not help setup or configure personally purchased 

equipment or software unless it is work related.  In some cases, Department Head approval will 
be required. 

• Copy Machines & Printers 
o The County has an agreement with a vendor for support, maintenance and procurement 

of copiers and printers.  That vendor should be contacted for help with these devices. 
o PCIT will help connect the machine to the network. 
o In most cases the ink/toner is provided as part of the Countywide support agreement.  

Otherwise, it is the responsibility of the department to procure and install ink/toner. 
o IT will help install the proper printer driver for a user or department. 

• Equipment purchased without PCIT coordination may not be supported (e.g., A laptop 
purchased without involving PCIT, may result in an unusable device because it is not compatible 
with County systems, security requirements, or the network. 

• Cleaning of customer equipment such as keyboards, printers, etc. is the responsibility of the 
department.  PCIT reserves the right to refuse excessively dirty hardware. 

 
Equipment Recycling or Sale  

• For security reasons, all electronic equipment that contains a storage device, such as a hard 
drive, must first be processed by PCIT, prior to recycling.  PCIT will wipe and/or remove and 
dispose of the storage device(s).  



4 
 

• If the electronic equipment does not contain a hard drive, then you may contact PCIT for 
recycling. 

• Customers should enter an PCIT ticket to request recycling of equipment. 
 
 
Note: 

• This document likely does not address all computer needs.  If you are unsure, you may always 
contact PCIT to learn how we can help. 

• The best way to contact PCIT is through the ticket system. 
• If your need is an emergency, you should call the hotline (712.242.1111). 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussion and/or decision to approve the 
Workforce Development contract for FY 24. 



CONTRACT FOR WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into the 1st day of March, 2023, by and 
between POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA, an Iowa Municipal Corporation whose mailing 
address and telephone number is 227 6th Street, Council Bluffs, IA 51501, telephone 
712-328-5600, organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Iowa (hereinafter
called "County") and the Council Bluffs Area Chamber of Commerce (herein called the Chamber)
whose mailing address and telephone number is 149 West Broadway, Council Bluffs, IA 51503,
telephone 712-325-1000.

WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS, the County desires to purchase certain services from said organization in 
lieu of hiring additional permanent staff and expending additional County funds to accomplish 
these services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto have agreed and do agree as follows: 

I 

PURPOSE AND INTENT 

The purpose of this Agreement is to procure for the County and its citizens assistance in 
developing and promoting workforce development strategies, including the project management 
of the Home Base Iowa and other applicable initiatives as hereinafter described; to establish the 
methods, procedures, terms and conditions governing payment by the County for such services; 
and, to establish other duties, responsibilities, terms and conditions mutually undertaken and 
agreed to by the parties hereto in consideration of the services to be performed and monies paid. 

II 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. In consideration for the payment of $50,000 in accordance with Section Ill, the Chamber
shall provide the following services to the County and its citizens. During the term of this
agreement the Chamber agrees to:

1) Report quarterly to the Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors on related activities.
Reports will include explanations of why specific activities and programs are undertaken
and likely beneficiaries. In addition, the Chamber will keep the Supervisors, individually
and/or collectively up-to-date on specific efforts and projects as requested.

2) Identify key targeted workforce for specific priorities, marketing, and programs;
3) Identify workforce education and training objectives and implement programming to

successfully integrate said programs throughout the County;
4) Construct linkages with the public, private, and nonprofit sectors, including those

businesses and companies located in rural/unincorporated Pottawattamie County;
5) Design and implement a workforce education and training strategy. Work with school

districts, community college, nonprofits, and other educational partners to do so;
6) Coordinate and work cooperatively with other workforce initiatives and/or programs

supported or funded by the County and Board of Supervisors as appropriate;
7) Conduct ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the program and individual initiatives.

Create timely programs and offerings to address regional workforce needs, all while
working with applicable partner organizations;

8) Work with Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors, Veteran Affairs, and the Veteran
Affairs Commission to successfully administer the Home Base Iowa initiative;

9) Design marketing materials for workforce programs and actively market said programs in
a variety of ways, including, written campaigns, social media, and print media; and

10) Be the main entity responsible for performing or coordinating fulfillment of the scope of
services.  Advocate at the local, state, and federal level for strategic workforce and talent
policy priorities, in coordination with the applicable Committees and stakeholders. 1 



111 

METHOD OF PAYMENT 

A. Payment for services will be made by County according to the following schedule:
July 1, 2023 -$25,000 
January 1, 2024 -$25,000 

B. On or before June 30, 2024, the Chamber will provide electronically, itemization of costs 
incurred. The Chamber will make available all receipts if requested by the County.

C. The maximum total amount payable by the County under this agreement is $50,000 as 
detailed in the SCOPE OF SERVICES (Section II of this contract), and no greater amount 
shall be paid.

IV 

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND ADMINISTRATION 

A. All monies disbursed under this Agreement shall be accounted for by the accrual method of
accounting.

B. Monies disbursed to the Chamber by the County will be deposited in an account under
the Chamber's name, with a bank located in Pottawattamie County, Iowa. All checks drawn on
the said account shall bear a memorandum line on which the drawer shall note the nature of
the costs for which the check is drawn in payment, and the program(s) of service.

C. All costs shall be supported by documentation evidencing in proper detail the nature and
propriety of the charges. All checks or other accounting documents pertaining in whole or in
part to this Agreement shall be clearly identified as such and readily accessible for
examination and audit by the County or its authorized representative without notice and
upon request by the County.

D. All records shall be maintained in accordance with procedures and requirements as
established by the Pottawattamie County Auditor, and the Auditor may, prior to any
disbursement under this Agreement, conduct a pre-audit of record keeping and financial
accounting procedures of the Chamber for the purpose of determining changes and
modifications necessary with respect to accounting for funds made available hereunder. All
records and documents required by this Agreement shall be maintained for a period of three
(3) years following final disbursement by the County.

E. Unless otherwise required by applicable laws, the Chamber shall allow the County access to
books and records for purposes of auditing or reviewing the Chamber's claims, upon request
by the County.

F. The Chamber's failure to provide access pursuant to this section (the entirety of Section IV as
contained herein) shall constitute a material breach of the Contract for Workforce
Development Services.

V 

DURATION 

A. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from and after July 1, 2023, until June 30,
2024.

B. EXTENSION. If mutually agreeable to County and the Chamber, this Agreement may be
extended. Such extension will be documented by written amendment, duly signed and dated 
by both parties. However, either party may terminate this contract due to non-fulfillment with
30-day's prior written notice.

2 



VI 

REQUIREMENTS 

The Chamber hereby agrees to perform all duties in accordance with all state and federal laws 
and regulations. The Chamber assures that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, 
national origin, or sex, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this 
program or activity. Failure to perform duties in accordance with the applicable laws and 
regulations shall be considered a material breach of this agreement by the Provider. 

VII 

ASSIGNMENT 

Neither party to this Agreement may assign, sell or transfer any part thereof to any other firm or 
entity without first obtaining the written permission of the other party hereto. 

VIII 

APPLICABLE STATE LAW AND WAIVER OF FEDERAL REMOVAL 

This Agreement has been negotiated, executed and delivered in the State of Iowa. The parties 
hereto agree that all questions pertaining to the validity and interpretation of this agreement will 
be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa in Pottawattamie County, Iowa. 
The parties hereby waive removal of any issue hereunder to the federal courts. This Agreement 
and referenced attachments constitute the entire contract of the parties hereto and supersedes 
any prior agreement between the parties. 

IX 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

It is understood that the Chamber is an independent professional contractor and that the 
Chamber will not in any event be construed as or hold itself out to be an employee or agent of 
the County. It is further agreed that at no time will the Chamber or the work efforts of the 
Chamber be under the supervision or control of the County, although the Chamber agrees to 
comply with all reasonable requests and regulations applicable to any other business invitee of 
the County. It is also agreed that the Chamber, as an independent contractor, is not restricted to 
working exclusively for the County during the term of the Agreement. 

X 

INSURANCE AND TAXES 

The Chamber is responsible for Workers Compensation, Disability, Unemployment, Automobile 
Insurance, and any other insurance required by the State of Iowa and will provide certificates of 
insurance to the County on an annual basis. The Chamber is also responsible for payment of 
State and Federal taxes, and any other applicable tax. The Chamber is not eligible for any 
benefits the County may provide for its employees. 

XI 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Chamber agrees to comply fully with confidentiality in compliance with all laws and 
regulations regarding protected health information. 

3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have, by their authorized representatives, set their hand and 
seal as of the date first above written. 

POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA ATTEST 

X
Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors
Chairperson

X
Pottawattamie County 
Auditor

   Date    Date 

COUNCIL BLUFFS AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

X
Drew Kamp
President & CEO

   Date 



Committee 
Appointments

Update from Board members on Committee 
meetings from the past week.



 

 

 

Public Comments 
 
 

            

 

 

 



 

 

 

Closed Session 



 

 

 

 

BUDGET STUDY SESSIONS 
 

  
 


	Consent Agenda Cover Page
	Scheduled Sessions Cover Page
	Matt Public Health
	Matt
	Other Business Cover Page
	Committee Appointments Cover Page
	Received Cover Page
	Public Comments
	Closed Session Cover Page
	ADP6B84.tmp
	Slide Number 1

	ADP63E0.tmp
	Slide Number 1

	ADPE075.tmp
	MELVYN J HOUSER




